
 
City Commission Agenda

Civic Center, 2 Park Drive South, Great Falls, MT
Commission Chambers Room 206

April 3, 2018

CALL TO ORDER 7:00 P.M.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ROLL CALL/STAFF INTRODUCTIONS

AGENDA APPROVAL

CONFLICT DISCLOSURE/ EX PARTE COMMUNICATIONS

PROCLAMATIONS

Esophageal Cancer Awareness Month, National Service Recognition Day, Child Abuse
Prevention Month, Week of the Young Child, Martin Luther King, Jr. and Public Safety
Telecommunicators Week.

PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
(Public comment on any matter that is not on the agenda of the meeting and that is within the jurisdiction of the City Commission. Please
keep your remarks to a maximum of 3 minutes. When at the podium, state your name and address for the record.)

1. Miscellaneous reports and announcements.

NEIGHBORHOOD COUNCILS

2. Miscellaneous reports and announcements from Neighborhood Councils.

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS

3. Miscellaneous reports and announcements from Boards and Commissions.

CITY MANAGER

4. Miscellaneous reports and announcements from the City Manager.

CONSENT AGENDA
The Consent Agenda is made up of routine day-to-day items that require Commission action. Items may be pulled from the Consent Agenda
for separate discussion/vote by any Commissioner.

5. Minutes, March 20, 2018, Commission Meeting

6. Total Expenditures of $1,956,273 for the period of March 1, 2018 through March 21,
2018, to include claims over $5,000, in the amount of $1,704,280.

7. Contracts List

8. Approve cancellation of outstanding and unpaid checks over one (1) year old issued by
City of Great Falls Municipal Court.

City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 1 of 54                                     



9. Approve the Professional Services Agreement in the amount of $140,795.00 to Water &
Environmental Technologies (WET) for the Vinyard Road Storm Water Management
Area Master Plan, and authorize the City Manager to execute the Agreement.

10. Award a contract in the amount of $131,350.00 to United Materials of Great Falls, Inc.
for the Police Department Water Main Replacement/Re-route Project and authorize the
City Manager to execute the construction contract documents.

11. Set Public Hearing for the CDBG and HOME Grant 2018/2019 Annual Action Plan for
April 17, 2018. 

Action:  Approve Consent Agenda as presented or remove items for separate discussion and/or vote

PUBLIC HEARINGS

OLD BUSINESS

NEW BUSINESS

12. 2017/2018 Amended Annual Action Plan and acceptance of the proposed use of CDBG
funds (Unallocated & Revolving Loan Funds).
Action: adopt or not adopt the 2017/2018 Amended Annual Action Plan; authorize or not
authorize the submittal to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD);
and accept or deny the proposed use of funds. (Presented by Craig Raymond)

ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS

CITY COMMISSION

13. Miscellaneous reports and announcements from the City Commission.

14. Commission Initiatives.

ADJOURNMENT
(Please exit the chambers as quickly as possible. Chamber doors will be closed 5 minutes after adjournment of the meeting.) Commission
meetings are televised on cable channel 190 and streamed live at https://greatfallsmt.net. City Commission meetings are re-aired on cable
channel 190 the following Wednesday morning at 10 am, and the following Tuesday evening at 7 pm.

City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 2 of 54                                     



Agenda # 5.
Commission Meeting Date: April 3, 2018

City of Great Falls
Commission Agenda Report

Item: Minutes, March 20, 2018

From: City Clerk's Office

Presented By: City Commission

ATTACHMENTS:

March 20, 2018 - - Draft City Commission Meeting Minutes

City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 3 of 54                                     



JOURNAL OF COMMISSION PROCEEDINGS
March 20, 2018

Regular City Commission Meeting
Commission Chambers Room 206

CALL TO ORDER 7:00 P.M.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ROLL CALL

City Commission members present: Bob Kelly, Bill Bronson, Tracy Houck, Mary Sheehy Moe,
and Owen Robinson. Also present were City Manager Greg Doyon and Deputy City Manager
Chuck Anderson; City Clerk Lisa Kunz; Public Works Director Jim Rearden; Planning and
Community Development Director Craig Raymond; Finance Director Melissa Kinzler; City
Attorney Sara Sexe; and, Police Chief Dave Bowen.

AGENDA APPROVAL

City Manager Greg Doyon noted that the Lincoln Elementary student leaders cancelled, and that the
minutes were updated after original posting to correct the spelling of Chief Bowen's last name on
page 8 of the Commission packet.  No changes were proposed by the City Commission.  The
agenda was approved.

CONFLICT DISCLOSURE/ EX PARTE COMMUNICATIONS

Commissioners Moe and Houck, and Mayor Kelly reported that they were each contacted by the
same individual regarding the Buffalo Crossing Subdivision project.  This person was informed that
the members of the Commission couldn't talk with her about this project, and suggested to her that
she attend the City Commission meeting to express her opinion.

PRESENTATION

Lincoln Student Leaders.

Cancelled.

PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS

1. Miscellaneous reports and announcements.

Brett Doney, Great Falls Development Authority, 300 Central Avenue, announced three
upcoming events recognizing entrepreneurs in the community.
 
John Hubbard, 615 7th Avenue South, discussed his electric bill and other matters not within
the Commission's jurisdiction.  Mayor Kelly reminded Mr. Hubbard this was a comment
period to discuss matters within the jurisdiction of the City Commission. 

NEIGHBORHOOD COUNCILS

DRAFT

City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 4 of 54                                     Attachment # 1



2. Miscellaneous reports and announcements from Neighborhood Councils.

None.

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS

3. Miscellaneous reports and announcements from Boards and Commissions.

Lonnie Hill, 610 4th Avenue SW, summarized facts and statistics regarding the proposed Park
District Number 1 for the purpose of creating a city-wide park maintenance district to supplement
current funding to address $12.6 million in deferred maintenance projects, and he encouraged
everyone to vote on the proposed Park District at the May 8th election.

CITY MANAGER

4. Miscellaneous reports and announcements from the City Manager.

City Manager Greg Doyon reported that the budget calendar will be out soon to the
Commission.  He reported on his recent trip to the Association of Governmental Risk Pools
(AGRiP) conference in San Diego.  He is also a member of the Montana Municipal Interlocal
Authority (MMIA) board.  He attended this conference because MMIA is considering a Captive,
which is a way to do secondary insurance  using your own funds. 
 
Manager Doyon announced that he will be attending MMIA Board meetings on Thursday
regarding employee benefits and Friday to set rates on property, liability, workers comp and heath
insurance.
 
He reported that, as a member of Montana League of Cities and Towns (MLCT), he has been
appointed to a senior advisory committee that is a component of the State Emergency Response
Commission. 
 
Commissioner Bronson and Manager Doyon reviewed and were able to comment on the Tax
Increment Financing (TIF) audit at a recent meeting in Helena.  TIFs will continue to be talked
about during the next legislative session.
 
Manager Doyon congratulated Park and Recreation Maintenance Mechanic Ted Fallat for his
accomplishment of becoming a certified playground safety inspector.
 
Four firefighters are attending technical school to attain their certifications.
 
Manager Doyon further reported that Budget Analyst Kirsten Myre will take his place as the
City's designee on the Downtown Development Partnership (DDP).

CONSENT AGENDA

5. Minutes, March 6, 2018, Commission Meeting.

DRAFT

City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 5 of 54                                     Attachment # 1



6. Contracts List.

7. Total Expenditures of $3,150,353 for the period of February 16, 2018 through
March 7, 2018, to include claims over $5,000, in the amount of $2,897,300.

8. Resolution 10231, repealing Resolution 10069 regarding property addressed
as 1905 4th St NE currently owned by MRO, Inc.

9. Award a contract in the amount of $3,283,284.00 to Central Excavation for the
18th Street Storm Drain Improvements Phase 2B – 4th Avenue South to 8th
Avenue South & 11th Avenue South to 15th Alley South project, contingent
upon Montana Department of Environmental Quality concurrence, and
authorize the City Manager to execute the necessary documents.

OF
1462.5

Commissioner Houck moved, seconded by Commissioner Robinson, that the City
Commission approve the Consent Agenda as presented.

Mayor Kelly asked if there was any discussion amongst the Commissioners or comments from
the public.  Hearing none, Mayor Kelly called for the vote.
 
Motion carried 5-0

PUBLIC HEARINGS

10. Preliminary Plat for the Buffalo Crossing Subdivision located in
Government Lots 2 and 3, Section 11,Township 20 North, Range 3 East,
P.M., City of Great Falls, Cascade County, MT.

Planning and Community Development Director Craig Raymond reported that the subject
property is a long, linear strip of land at the southeast corner of Central Avenue West and Bay
Drive, located along the western edge of the Missouri River. The property is ±2.22 acres and
zoned M-2, Mixed-use transitional. There are two structures on the property. One structure is a
brick building at the corner of Bay Drive and Central Avenue West, which is proposed for
renovation and reuse, and the second structure is a metal clad storage building that will be either
demolished or relocated as part of future development. 

The applicant is proposing to subdivide the property into six lots and create a project known as
Buffalo Crossing. The northernmost lot would be created to redevelop the existing building, while
five new lots are proposed for future development consistent with the M-2 zoning district. The
lots in the preliminary plat would range in size from 10,245 square feet to 25,510 square feet.
 
The proposed lots meet all the requirements specified in the City's M-2 zoning district.

DRAFT

City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 6 of 54                                     Attachment # 1



Additionally, because the property is located within the heart of the City, public infrastructure and
services can be readily provided. He explained that roadway infrastructure already exists adjacent
to the property with Bay Drive running in a north/south direction alongside the parcel to be
subdivided. First Avenue SW and 2nd Avenue SW run perpendicular to the site and both
terminate at Bay Drive. Bay Drive will be utilized for vehicular access for each lot at the time of
development. Currently, no sidewalk exists; however, the owner does acknowledge that public
sidewalks will be installed as each lot develops. The applicant will also be required to install
boulevard trees and curbing along the east edge of Bay Drive. In addition to the sidewalk, shared
use paths will be provided to connect Bay Drive sidewalk to the River's Edge Trail.

All utilities, including water, sewer, power, gas, and telephone, exist in the Bay Drive right-of-
way. No extension of water or sewer mains is needed for the subdivision. Water services will be
connected to the main at the time of development. It is anticipated that there is adequate sewer
capacity for the typical amount of wastewater discharge associated with the proposed subdivision.
Sewer services will need to be connected to the existing gravity main. With regard to storm water,
the existing lot drains away from the river and towards Bay Drive. The City already has capacity
to adequately handle storm water from the development as it is currently proposed. Additionally,
site design methods will be employed that include low impact development concepts. 

Unique features of the subject property are its relationship and proximity to the Missouri River
and that a segment of the River's Edge Trail system runs along the back of the property,
separated from the remaining property by a retaining wall. Director Raymond noted that a project
such as this one was contemplated in the Missouri River Urban Corridor Plan; although, the
vision which was depicted in the plan in 2004 for this specific property was a much more
aggressive concept. The Plan's scope in purpose was in part to “recognize that some
development patterns along the river corridor represented an opportunity for more desirable,
sustainable development that would capitalize on the river as an amenity and a resource.”
Furthermore, this proposed subdivision conforms to the Plan in that:

1) The proposed subdivision and subsequent development will not have an adverse effect on the
stream flows or hydrology of the river, nor have a substantial effect on the flood plain of the
Missouri River;

2) Land and water based recreational values and opportunities associated with the river will be
created, preserved, and enhanced, including public access to the river;

3) The subdivision will promote beneficial, sustainable economic development that utilizes the
river as an amenity and will not have a negative effect on the ecological integrity and asset value;
and

4) No major through transportation facilities are needed to serve this development nor are
substantial transportation improvements proposed other than pedestrian facilities along Bay Drive
and the aforementioned public connections to the River Edge Trail;.

At the conclusion of a public hearing held on February 27, 2018, the Planning Advisory Board
recommended that the City Commission approve the preliminary plat of Buffalo Crossing
Addition, subject to the fulfillment of the following Conditions of Approval: 

1. General Code Compliance. The proposed project shall be developed consistent with the
conditions in this agenda report, and all codes and ordinances of the City of Great Falls, the State
of Montana, and all other applicable regulatory agencies. 

2. Amended Plat. Provide an Amended Plat of the subject property which shall incorporate
corrections of any errors or omissions noted by staff. 

DRAFT

City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 7 of 54                                     Attachment # 1



3. Utilities. The final engineering drawings and specifications for public improvements for the
subject property shall be submitted to the City Public Works Department for review and
approval. 

4. Land Use & Zoning. Development of the property shall be consistent with allowed uses and
specific development standards of the M-2 Mixed-Use Transitional district designation. 

5. Stormwater Plan. A stormwater drainage plan meeting all City requirements shall be submitted
in association with future development of the subdivision. 

6. Trail Access. At the time of final platting, trail access easements running from Bay Drive to the
existing trail in the subdivision shall be dedicated. The location and width of the easements shall
be determined in consultation with the City's Park and Recreation Department. 

Mayor Kelly declared the public hearing open. 

Speaking in support of the Preliminary Plat for the Buffalo Crossing Subdivision were:
 
Lyle Meeks, NCI Engineering, 4509 N. Star Blvd., representing property owners Ken and
Paula Holman, added that the property is fairly unusable in its current state because it is only
about 90 feet wide and a quarter mile long.  The owner is doing what he can to make the parcel
ready for more appropriate development, including donating valuable acreage adjacent to the river
for the River's Edge Trail, and will work with staff to ensure better public access to the River's
Edge Trail at two or three locations within the subdivision.
 
Ron Staley, NC 2 Chairman, residing at 801 3rd Ave SW, noted that Mr. Meeks did an
excellent job explaining to the council what will be taking place at the project site.  At the
conclusion of the presentation, three council members present at the meeting voted on the
project -  two were in favor, and one member abstained until she could get additional
information.    Mr. Staley inquired how the name "Buffalo Crossing" came about.
 
Mr. Meeks responded that this particular area of the Missouri River was well known throughout
history as the primary crossing for the buffalo because the water was very shallow with bedrock.
 
Shyla Patera, 1013 7th Ave NW, commented that she was the NC 2 member that
abstained. She is in favor of ADA infrastructure, but has questions about the development.  As
development progresses, she requested that the council be kept informed and updated.  
 
Brett Doney, Great Falls Development Authority (GFDA), 300 Central Avenue, commented
that in 2002 GFDA received an EDA Master Plan grant to start looking at the west bank of the
river, and subsequent Brownfield Assessment grant.  He provided a handout consisting of a few
pages of the Missouri River Urban Corridor Plan, noting that this project ties in with the Plan. 
By doing the subdivision, GFDA hopes it will attract attention from businesses and developers to
start looking at the area.

Speaking in opposition to the Preliminary Plat for the Buffalo Crossing Subdivision were:
 
Stuart Lewin, 615 3rd Ave N, commented he was a member of the committee that put together
the Missouri River Urban Corridor Plan.  His observation is that the Plan is not being adequately
considered.  He suggested that a committee review the entire area of the Missouri River corridor
and make recommendations on what is in the best interest of the community.  With regard to
development, he opined the best use for the area is park land or open space. 

DRAFT

City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 8 of 54                                     Attachment # 1



 
Susan Colvin, 287 McIver Rd, reviewed portions of a handout consisting of a few pages of the
Missouri River Urban Corridor Plan.  She expressed trepidation about the project being six lots,
and would rather it be subdivided into two lots.  She further expressed concern about building on
the smaller lots, parking, and the flood plain.  Ms. Colvin thanked Mayor Kelly for informing
her about ex parte communication.

There being no one further to address the Commission, Mayor Kelly closed the public hearing
and asked the will of the Commission.

Commissioner Bronson moved, seconded by Commissioner Robinson, that the City
Commission approve the Preliminary Plat of the Buffalo Crossing subdivision and the
accompanying Findings of Fact, subject to the Conditions of Approval being fulfilled by
the applicant.

Mayor Kelly asked if there was any discussion amongst the Commissioners. 

Commissioner Bronson commented that the requested action tonight is to approve a subdivision
plat.  The Commission is not making any decisions tonight on what development might actually
occur there.  There will be other opportunities for the public and for advisory boards to comment
on what might be most appropriate at that time. 
 
He noted that he chaired the City/County Planning Board in 2004 when the Missouri River
Urban Corridor Plan was considered.  Page 26 of the Plan sets forth: "It is intended to be
visionary yet non-prescriptive because development opportunities cannot be foretold and
community values and needs change over time." 
 
Commissioner Bronson concluded that, in terms of future development, anything that would be
proposed there is fully consistent with the vision in the Plan; and specific development that is
done will need to be in accordance with design review, building codes, or both.
 
Commissioner Moe added that the decision before the Commission is simply regarding the
subdivision plat and she is in support of the motion.  She shares the concerns expressed regarding
parking, the proximity to the river, flood plain, and railroad.  She inquired of Director Raymond if
the subdivision, as proposed, cut through a building.
 
Director Raymond responded, possibly a metal storage building, but it will be demolished or
relocated. 
 
Commissioner Houck asked questions of Mr. Meeks regarding concerns about parking and the
size of six lots rather than a smaller number of lots.
 
Mr. Meeks responded that six lots was a decision of the owners and the architect.  In his
experience with similar-type subdivisions, the owners could come back within a year with a re-
plat that eliminates some property lines, or new owners will buy multiple lots.  With regard to
parking, the owner owns two lots on the west side of Bay Drive that are in cue for parking.  In
the development review process they will have to adhere to the City's parking requirements.
 
Commissioner Houck further inquired about final say regarding access points on the River's Edge
Trail.
 
Director Raymond responded that if conditions have not been met, it could be reason for
Commission denial of the final plat approval.

DRAFT

City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 9 of 54                                     Attachment # 1



 
Commissioner Robinson and Mayor Kelly expressed their support of the project.
 
There being no further discussion, Mayor Kelly called for the vote. 

Motion carried 5-0

11. Resolution 10230, Conditional Use Permit for a "Contractor Yard, Type
II" land use located at 410 14th St SW.

Planning and Community Development Director Craig Raymond reported that the applicant,
Terrascapes, LLC, has submitted an application requesting a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to
allow for the formal and legal establishment of a “Contractor Yard, Type II” land use upon the
subject property. The property is presently zoned M-2 Mixed-use transitional, wherein a
Contractor Yard, Type II, land use is permitted upon receiving approval of a CUP and fulfillment
of any required conditions.
 
A “Contractor Yard” is defined in OCCGF Title 17 as “a place and/or building, or portion
thereof, that is used or is intended to be used by a contractor or builder with one (1) or more of
the following: construction material storage, machinery storage or repair, including trucks and
heavy equipment, shops, and office space.” A Contractor Yard, Type II, is considered compatible
in size and scope with industrial and commercial activities, as opposed to smaller scale businesses
that would have no substantial impacts to a residential neighborhood.
 
Terrascapes, LLC, has been occupying the subject property and operating the business without
the required CUP. Staff learned of this violation when the owner, Mr. Sykes, applied for a
building permit for a project on the property. Staff has also received comments and complaints
regarding the property since that time. As such, certain conditions of approval are owing to the
neglected condition of the property and its effect on neighboring properties.
 
Terrascapes is a construction firm employing eight or more seasonal workers, offering lawn care,
landscaping, nursery materials, snow removal, irrigation repair, full service lawn mowing,
mulches, and construction. In order to accommodate the expanding business, the owner
purchased the subject property comprised of six tracts of land, totaling 13.2 acres.  The property
was formally used by Carl Weissman & Sons metal salvage operations. The subject property has
an existing 16,000 square foot warehouse in the southeast corner of the property. The western
and northern portions of the property were filled with concrete rubble and then partially covered
with dirt. The subject property is surrounded by urban development that includes a metal
fabrication business to the southeast, automotive repair business to the east, nursery business to
the south, and residential properties to the west and north. The applicant intends to renovate the
lower level of the warehouse which is approximately 9,800 square feet, for his business
operations and use portions of the west property for a nursery, landscape material storage, and
outside equipment parking. The redevelopment includes site clean-up, building renovations,
boulevard trees and landscaping along 5th Avenue Southwest, and landscape buffers along the
residential properties to the west. A new driveway approach will be constructed, concrete parking
spaces next to the warehouse installed, and gravel parking for equipment and seasonal employees.
 
At the conclusion of a public hearing held on February 13, 2018, the Planning Advisory
Board/Zoning Commission recommended the City Commission approve the Conditional Use
Permit, subject to the conditions of approval as outlined in the agenda report and resolution.

DRAFT

City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 10 of 54                                     Attachment # 1



Mayor Kelly declared the public hearing open.
 
Speaking in support of Resolution 10230 were:
 
Braylen Sykes, Terrascapes, LLC, 1905 11th Street SW, commented that since purchasing the
property a lot of time has been spent cleaning up the property.  What he proposes for the
property will be good for the neighborhood overall.  
 
Ron Staley, NC 2 Chairman, residing at 801 3rd Ave SW, commented that this matter was
presented to the council.  Several neighbors concurred there has been a noticeable improvement
in cleaning up the property.
 
Brett Doney, GFDA, 300 Central Avenue, commended staff for accommodating the buisness
owner.  He concluded that it is nice to see the property put to use by a growing Great Falls
business.
 
Cheryl Higgins, 1517 3rd Avenue SW, inquired what would be required of the applicant for 3rd
Avenue SW.
 
Director Raymond responded that property lines bordering residential zoned properties will
require a landscape buffer.  No sidewalks currently exist.
 
Speaking in opposition to Resolution 10230 was:
 
John Hubbard, 615 7th Avenue South, commented that he provided a map to the EPA of
where his former employer, Carl Weissman & Sons, dumped toxic material on the proprety.
 
There being no one further to address the Commission, Mayor Kelly closed the public hearing
and asked the will of the Commission.

Commissioner Moe moved, seconded by Commissioner Bronson, that the City
Commission adopt Resolution 10230 for a Conditional Use Permit for a "Contractor
Yard, Type II" land use located at 410 14th Street SW, Great Falls, MT, subject to
fulfilling the listed conditions of approval.

Mayor Kelly asked if there was any discussion amongst the Commissioners.
 
Commissioner Moe noted she was impressed by the presentation made to the Planning Advisory
Board/Zoning Commission.
 
There being no further discussion, Mayor Kelly called for the vote.
 
Motion carried 5-0

12. Resolution 10232, annexing 24th Ave S right-of-way adjoining Lot 4A of
the Medical Tech Park Minor Subdivision and 24th Ave S right-of-way
adjacent to Lot 2A and approval of a Final Plat for a 5-lot subdivision
known as Rockcress Commons.

DRAFT

City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 11 of 54                                     Attachment # 1



Planning and Community Development Director Craig Raymond reported that the property
under consideration is located just north of 24th Avenue South and is roughly between 20th
Street South and 23rd Street South.  It adjoins the City limits in an area known as the Med Tech
Park Minor Subdivision.

The proposed development parcel, which is roughly 7.9 acres, was up until recently part of a
much larger 29.4 acre property within the County. The property is vacant, used as pasture, and
slopes gradually from south to north. On the north side of 24th Avenue South, an asphalt shared
use path has previously been constructed and is proposed to be incorporated into the project. The
overall project under consideration is for the eventual construction of a 124 unit multi-family
project. The northern portion of the development proposal contains three apartment buildings as
well as a Community Building and outdoor play area for the entire tenant base. The southern
portion of the project contains four apartment buildings. The density of the proposed project is
15.6 units per acre with approximately 53% of developable area set aside for greenspace
(landscaping, play areas and storm water control).

As was discussed during the annexation, zoning and preliminary plat approval phase of this
project, the property was assigned a PUD zoning designation and the applicant to date has
proposed development that is consistent with that vision.

The basis for decision to approve, conditionally approve, or deny a proposed subdivision is
whether the subdivision application, final plat, applicable environmental assessment, public
hearing, City Commission recommendations, or additional information demonstrate that
development of the proposed subdivision meets the requirements of Mont. Code Ann. 76-3-608. 
Findings of Fact are attached to the agenda report for Commission review and concurrence. Staff
finds that the proposed final plat is consistent with these basis. 

Public Notice for the City Commission Public Hearing for the rights-of-way annexation was
published in the Great Falls Tribune on March 4, 2018. 

At the conclusion of a public hearing held on February 27, 2018, the Planning Advisory Board
recommended approval of the final amended plat and annexation request. 

Commissioner Bronson commented he neglected to point out at the outset that he is going to
recuse himself from discussion and vote on this matter for the reason being his wife is employed
by NeighborWorks.
 
Mayor Kelly declared the public hearing open.
 
No one spoke in opposition to Resolution 10232 and final plat.
 
Speaking in favor of Resolution 10232 and final plat were:
 
Janna Cooper, TD&H Engineering, 1800 River Drive North, commented she would answer
any questions the Commission may have.
 
Brett Doney, GFDA, 300 Central Avenue, commented in support of quality affordable housing.
 
There being no one further to address the Commission, Mayor Kelly closed the public hearing
and asked the will of the Commission.

Commissioner Houck moved, seconded by Commissioner Moe, that the City Commission

DRAFT

City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 12 of 54                                     Attachment # 1



adopt Resolution 10232.

Mayor Kelly asked if there was any discussion amongst the Commissioners.
 
Commissioner Robinson inquired if oversized pipes were required for future development and if
those future developers were required to reimburse the proportionate cost of the upsizing. 
 
Director Rearden responded that future developers would pay to get the infrastructure to and
through their property for future development.
 
There being no further discussion, Mayor Kelly called for the vote.
 
Motion carried 4-0-1 (Commissioner Bronson abstained)

Commissioner Houck moved, seconded by Commissioner Moe, that the City Commission
approve the final plan of an Amended Plat of Lot 4A of the Correction of an Amended
Plat of Lot 4 of the Amended Plat of the Medical Tech Park Minor Subdivision for
Rockcress Commons, subject to the applicant fulfilling the listed conditions of approval.

Mayor Kelly asked if there was any further discussion amongst the Commissioners.  Hearing
none, Mayor Kelly called for the vote.
 
Motion carried 4-0-1 (Commissioner Bronson abstained)

OLD BUSINESS

NEW BUSINESS

ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS

13. Ordinance 3186, Amending Title 3, Chapter 6, of The Official Code of
The City of Great Falls (OCCGF) Pertaining To Sale of Unclaimed
Personal Property.

City Attorney Sara Sexe reported that the Ordinance under consideration amends the Official
Code of the City of Great Falls (OCCGF) Title 3, Chapter 6, pertaining to the sale of unclaimed
personal property in Great Falls Police Department (GFPD) custody. Beginning in 2016, staff
began examining issues with an overcrowding of unclaimed personal property in GFPD custody.
A vast majority of the property being held by the GFPD has little or no value, and it has never
been claimed by a rightful owner. This property comes into GFPD custody by a number of
different means. The property may be obtained as evidence as part of investigations or cases
which have been concluded or resolved. The property alternatively in many instances has been
delivered to the GFPD because members of the public have no other way of disposing of the
property. The property sits in custody sometimes in perpetuity with no means of disposal,
creating obvious storage issues. 

This problem is not specific to the City of Great Falls. This problem exists in many of the larger
municipal and county jurisdictions throughout the state. Prior to the 2017 Montana Legislative
Session, there was no clear legislative criteria as to how law enforcement agencies could dispose
of this type of property. The Great Falls City Attorney’s Office requested the Montana League

DRAFT

City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 13 of 54                                     Attachment # 1



of Cities and Towns consider supporting legislative changes to the existing statutory scheme, to
allow for alternative means of disposition of such property. 

During the 2017 legislative session, the Montana League of Cities and Towns worked on
legislation to establish criteria by which this type of property could be disposed. Senate Bill (SB)
200, introduced by Senator Edward Buttrey, passed and was signed into law. City Commissioner
Bill Bronson, Assistant City Attorney Joseph Cik, and GFPD Captain John Schaffer attended
both House and Senate Judiciary Committee sessions and testified as proponents of the Bill. SB
200 amended Mont. Code Ann. Title 7, Chapter 8, Part 1, pertaining to general provisions to
local government and, specifically, Mont. Code Ann. § 7-8-105 allows for a process by
which unclaimed personal property in possession of a peace officer or law enforcement entity of
the local government may be disposed of.

Commissioner Robinson moved, seconded by Commissioner Moe, that the City
Commission adopt Ordinance 3186.

Commissioner Houck stepped out of the meeting at 8:39 p.m. and returned at 8:42 p.m.
 
Mayor Kelly asked if there were any comments from the public.
 
John Hubbard, 615 7th Avenue South, discussed a family ranch outside of Sun River that was
broken into and numerous items stolen in 1953 and 1979.  He was informed to check with
the Sheriff's Department of that county.
 
Mayor Kelly asked if there was any discussion amongst the Commissioners.   
 
Commissioner Houck encouraged people to use the online tool on the Police Department's
webpage to report stolen items, especially bicycles.
 
There being no further discussion, Mayor Kelly called for the vote.
 
Motion carried 5-0

CITY COMMISSION

14. Miscellaneous reports and announcements from the City Commission.

Commissioner Bronson announced that the Cascade City County Health Department recently
received accreditation through the Public Health and Accreditation Board. 
 
Commissioner Houck thanked all of the volunteers and everyone that participated in Western Art
Week in Great Falls.  
 
She also noted that City services are provided to everyone equitably and expressed appreciation
to the Planning and Community Development staff for being business friendly.
 
Commissioner Robinson noted his recent absence and thanked the Commission.
 
Commissioner Moe reported that she has attended a few Neighborhood Council meetings.  She
was impressed with what Neighborhood Council 7 was doing to solicit input from neighbors to

DRAFT

City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 14 of 54                                     Attachment # 1



create a vision for what they want the neighborhood to be in the future. 
 
As a former legislator, she also responded to comments made during the City Manager's
report concerning the legislature and TIF audit committee.  She concluded that TIFs are an
important tool for local governments to use.  She hopes to see improvements in that area and that
the State will continue to give local governments the flexibility that it continues to need.
 
Mayor Kelly announced that, for the fourth year in a row, Great Falls College MSU and a group
called Partnering for Prevention is sponsoring an annual No More Violence Conference from
April 2nd through April 6th.  He commended those groups that are looking at problems in the
community straight up, and trying to educate the community on issues and ways to make things
better.

15. Commission Initiatives.

None.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the Commission, Commissioner Moe moved,
seconded by Mayor Kelly, to adjourn the regular meeting of March 20, 2018, at 8:58 p.m.

Motion carried 5-0

 
 

_________________________________
Mayor Bob Kelly

 
 

 _________________________________
City Clerk Lisa Kunz

 
Minutes Approved:

April 3, 2018DRAFT

City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 15 of 54                                     Attachment # 1



Agenda # 6.
Commission Meeting Date: April 3, 2018

City of Great Falls
Commission Agenda Report

Item: Total Expenditures of $1,956,273 for the period of March 1, 2018 through March 21, 2018, to
include claims over $5,000, in the amount of $1,704,280.

From: Fiscal Services

Initiated By: City Commission

Presented By: Melissa Kinzler, Fiscal Services Director

ATTACHMENTS:

5000 Report

City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 16 of 54                                     



Agenda # 6

Commission Meeting Date: April 3, 2018

CITY OF GREAT FALLS

COMMISSION AGENDA REPORT

ITEM: $5,000 Report

Invoices and Claims in Excess of $5,000

PRESENTED BY: Fiscal Services Director

ACTION REQUESTED:  Approval with Consent Agenda

LISTING OF ALL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE CHECKS ISSUED AVAILABLE ONLINE AT 

www.greatfallsmt.net/fiscalservices/check-register-fund

TOTAL CHECKS ISSUED AND WIRE TRANSFERS MADE ARE NOTED BELOW WITH AN

ITEMIZED LISTING OF ALL TRANSACTIONS GREATER THAN $5000:

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE CHECK RUNS FROM MARCH 8, 2018 - MARCH 21, 2018 1,902,872.66

MUNICIPAL COURT ACCOUNT CHECK RUN FOR MARCH 1, 2018 - MARCH 14, 2018 53,400.00

TOTAL:  $ 1,956,272.66

GENERAL FUND

OTHER ADMIN

CTA ARCHITECTS ENGINEERS PHASE I CC EXTERIOR ENVELOPE REHAB 22,640.68

ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES

FIRE

PIERCE FLOORING & DESIGN FLOORING STATION 1 KITCHEN 8,045.69

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

ECONOMIC REVOLVING

FIRST CALL RESOLUTION LLC BIG SKY TRUST FUND GRANT 85,500.00

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

WATER

TECHNICAL MARKETING MFG, INC PUMP STATION PLC UPGRADE 6,064.15

LANDMARK STRUCTURES I, L.P. OF 1625.2 GORE HILL TANK REPLACEMENT 68,567.15

BLACK & VEATCH CORPORATION OF 1519.6 WTP IMP PH 1 CONSTRUCTION 69,190.35

SLETTEN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY OF 1519.6 WTP IMP PH 1 CONSTRUCTION 572,336.57

STATE OF MONTANA 1% WITHHOLDING FOR SLETTEN 5,781.18

CONSTRUCTION

Page 1 of 2

City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 17 of 54                                     Attachment # 1



ENTERPRISE FUNDS (CONTINUED)

SEWER

STATE OF MONTANA OUTFALL CHARGE 2017 28,597.50

SANITATION

CASCADE ENGINEERING, INC 96 GALLON REFUSE CONTAINERS 26,810.24

CIVIC CENTER EVENTS

ALEXANDER TEMPLE CHURCH OF 18-90 CASH OUT  LOVE DON'T KNOW 9,758.17

GOD IN TRUST NO COLOR

INTERNAL SERVICES FUND

CENTRAL GARAGE

MOUNTAIN VIEW CO-OP FUEL 22,687.94

VERMEER ROCKY MOUNTAIN INC STUMP CUTTER 45,000.00

CDW GOVERNMENT COMPUTER EQUIPMENT FOR PD CARS 7,928.80

CC FACILITY SERVICES

MR GREEN LANDSCAPE SOLUTIONS CIVIC CENTER SNOW REMOVAL 12,726.00

TRUST AND AGENCY

COURT TRUST MUNICIPAL COURT

CITY OF GREAT FALLS FINES & FORFEITURES COLLECTIONS 45,617.00

PAYROLL CLEARING 

STATE TREASURER MONTANA TAXES 43,579.00

ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS 8,321.89

FIREFIGHTER RETIREMENT FIREFIGHTER RETIREMENT EMPLOYEE & 52,593.98

EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

STATEWIDE POLICE RESERVE FUND POLICE RETIREMENT EMPLOYEE & 64,504.56

EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PUBLIC EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT 122,643.37

EMPLOYEE & EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

POLICE SAVINGS & LOAN EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS 14,271.00

US BANK FEDERAL TAXES, FICA & MEDICARE 184,833.31

AFLAC EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS 10,980.62

NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTIONS EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS 12,812.64

UTILITY BILLS

ENERGY WEST RESOURCES INC FEBRUARY 2018 MONTHLY CHARGES 37,245.42

MONTANA WASTE SYSTEMS INC FEBRUARY 2018 MONTHLY CHARGES 50,641.01

TALEN TREASURE STATE ELECTRICITY CHARGES FOR FEB 2018 64,601.60

CLAIMS OVER $5000 TOTAL: $ 1,704,279.82

Page 2 of 2

City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 18 of 54                                     Attachment # 1



Agenda # 7.
Commission Meeting Date: April 3, 2018

City of Great Falls
Commission Agenda Report

Item: Contracts List

From: City Clerk's Office

Presented By: City Commission

ATTACHMENTS:

Contracts List

City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 19 of 54                                     



 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF GREAT FALLS, MONTANA                                                                                                                 AGENDA:   7                                                 

 

COMMUNICATION TO THE CITY COMMISSION      DATE: April 3, 2018 

 
ITEM:    CONTRACTS LIST 

Itemizing contracts not otherwise approved or ratified by City Commission Action 
(Listed contracts are available for inspection in the City Clerk’s Office.) 

 
PRESENTED BY:   Darcy Dea, Deputy City Clerk 

 

ACTION REQUESTED:  Ratification of Contracts through the Consent Agenda 
 
MAYOR’S SIGNATURE: ___________________________________________                                                                       

 

CONTRACTS LIST 

 
 
  

DEPARTMENT 

 
OTHER PARTY (PERSON 

OR ENTITY) 

 
PERIOD 

 
AMOUNT 

 
PURPOSE 

A 

Finance  OnLine Utility Exchange Until either 
party 
provides 
notice of 
cancellation 
 

$30 per month plus 
$2.60 per transaction 

Subscriber Service Agreement to provide 
services for fraud detection, credit worthiness 
scores, supply business and consumer 
information, consumer reports, information 
pertaining to unpaid utility bills and other 
services.  (CR 120109.5 – Resolution 9872) 
and Subscriber Service Agreement 
Addendum DMF, GLBA, CISP Compliance 
 

City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 20 of 54                                     Attachment # 1



B 

Great Falls Police 
Department   

George H. Bristol 03/20/2018-
06/30/2018 

$2500 Professional Services Agreement to provide a 
35 hour Defensive Tactics Instructor 
Development Course 
 

C 

Public Works 
 

Grass Whackers LLC 04/03/2018-
10/31/2018 

$35 per hour times 
the number of 
employees needed to 
cut each area or 
property, plus $2.50 
gas service charge 
 

Nuisance Grass/Weeds Cutting & Removal 
2018 Agreement for cutting grasses/weeds on 
City and private properties as assigned by 
Weed Investigator.  
($5000-10,000 estimated per year) 
 

D 

Planning and 
Community 
Development 

Thomas J. Skovron Permanent N/A Roadway Easement to ensure future roadway 
connectivity to Dalea Drive.  T20N  R3E Sec 
22 Lot 11 
 

E 

Public Works/ 
Engineering 
 
 

 

Nelson Architects 04/03/2018-
06/30/2019 

$11,073.25 Professional Services Agreement for 
architecture services for the central garage, 
and street and sanitation building roof and 
exterior repairs project for bidding and 
project management 
OF 1733.0 

 
 

City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 21 of 54                                     Attachment # 1



Agenda # 8.
Commission Meeting Date: April 3, 2018

City of Great Falls
Commission Agenda Report

Item: Cancellation of Outstanding and Unpaid Checks from Municipal Court over a year old.

From: Jo Griner, Municipal Court Supervisor

Initiated By: Jo Griner, Municipal Court Supervisor

Presented By: Jo Griner, Municipal Court Supervisor

Action Requested: Approve cancellation of outstanding and unpaid checks over a year old issued by
City of Great Falls Municipal Court.

Suggested Motion:
1.  Commissioner moves:            
 

“I move that the City Commission (Approve/Deny) the cancellation of City of Great Falls checks
that remain outstanding, and unpaid, for a period of one (1) year or longer as authorized by section
Mont. Code Ann.  §7-6-4303 and authorize redistribution to the General Fund and the Municipal
Court Unclaimed Restitution Fund.” 
 

2.  Mayor request a second to the motion, Commission discussion, public comment, and calls for the
vote.

Staff Recommendation:
Staff recommends that the City Commission approve the cancellation of checks that remain outstanding,
and unpaid, for the period of one (1) year or longer. 

Summary:
Mont. Code Ann. §7-6-4303, authorizes the City Commission to cancel municipal checks that have
remained outstanding and unpaid for a period of one (1) year or longer.  Attached is the required list of
the instruments to be cancelled including the check number, date, amount, and payee.  Municipal Court
sends out two separate letters with affidavits to the address on record for the payee.  If no response is
received, a request to cancel the checks is sent to the City Commission.  If a payee comes forward any
time after the checks are cancelled, Municipal Court will generate a replacement check. All affidavits
for replacement checks, that have been returned to the City, have had checks re-issued. The last time the
City Commission approved cancellation of checks, issued by the Great Falls Municipal Court
Department, was September 5, 2017.

City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 22 of 54                                     



Fiscal Impact:
The total amount of the checks that are written off ($2,259.33) is placed in the General Fund
miscellaneous revenue and/or the Municipal Court Unclaimed Restitution Fund. 

ATTACHMENTS:

Redacted List of Checks

City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 23 of 54                                     



Type Date Issued Check No.
Restitution

 Check Amt. 

Bond Check 

Amt.

Physical

 Check

Restitution 8/8/2013 26410 $25.00 No

Restitution 2/14/2014 27043 $50.00 No

Restitution 3/7/2014 27111 $60.00 No

Restitution 11/17/2014 30759 $2.00 No

Restitution 2/17/2015 31097 $50.00 No

Restitution 2/27/2015 31178 $50.00 No

Restitution 5/15/2015 31466 $75.00 No

Restitution 5/15/2015 31506 $25.00 No

Restitution 8/31/2015 31868 $100.00 No

Restitution 10/13/2015 32039 $20.00 No

Restitution 11/30/2015 32191 $100.00 No

Bond 1/15/2016 32314 $585.00 No

Restitution 2/16/2016 32402 $300.00 No

Bond 2/16/2016 32409 $150.00 No

Restitution 4/29/2016 32663 $50.00 No

Restitution 5/31/2016 32752 $129.00 No

Other 6/30/2016 32867 $50.00 No

Other 6/30/2016 32890 $1.00 No

Bond 7/27/2016 32964 $30.00 No

Other 9/14/2016 33086 $4.00 No

Restitution 9/16/2016 33101 $50.00 No

Restitution 9/16/2016 33109 $50.00 No

Restitution 10/18/2016 33220 $50.00 No

Restitution 10/18/2016 33248 $16.66 No

Restitution 11/30/2016 33366 $150.00 No

Restitution 12/14/2016 33428 $3.34 No

Restitution 12/30/2016 33477 $33.33 No

Restitution 12/30/2016 33509 $50.00 No

$1,674.33 $585.00

TOTAL $2,259.33

Unclaimed Restitution and Bonds 

City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 24 of 54                                     Attachment # 1



Agenda # 9.
Commission Meeting Date: April 3, 2018

City of Great Falls
Commission Agenda Report

Item: Professional Services Agreement: Vinyard Road Storm Water Management Area Master Plan –
O.F. 1476.6

From: Engineering Division

Initiated By: Public Works Department

Presented By: Jim Rearden, Public Works Director

Action Requested: Approve Professional Services Agreement

Suggested Motion:
1.  Commissioner moves:
 

"I move the City Commission (approve/not approve) the Professional Services Agreement in the
amount of $140,795.00 to Water & Environmental Technologies (WET) for the Vinyard Road
Storm Water Management Area Master Plan, and authorize the City Manager to execute the
Agreement."

 
2.  Mayor calls for a second to the motion, Commission discussion, public comment, and calls for the
vote.

Background:
Significant Impacts
Continued development along the northern fringe of the City has created a need for a regional storm
water management facility to control and treat storm runoff before draining to Watson Coulee. Recent
development in this area includes the Eagles Crossing, Northview, Stone Meadows, Thaniel, and West
Ridge subdivisions. Current phases of  Thaniel and West Ridge Additions have been required to provide
temporary storm water management facilities to reduce impacts to downstream private property. Because
of the continued development, lack of downstream storm drain facilities and the expense to modify,
remove and/or relocate temporary facilities, there is a need for a regional storm water management
facility. The Master Plan will provide the blue print for a regional storm water management facility that
will serve long term development in the area. It will also address the more immediate stormwater
management needs of the current and future phases of the Thaniel and West Ridge Additions. Those
immediate needs include stormwater conveyances and flow attenuation and treatment. The developers of
Thaniel and West Ridge have secured 40 acres of land adjacent to those developments for the purpose of
storm water management. A portion of the 40 acres will also serve as right-of-way for a storm drain

City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 25 of 54                                     



trunk main and 43rd Avenue NE/NW.
 
This land is located east of the intersection of Vinyard Road and 6th Street NW.  The City has made
arrangements with the developers to eventually transfer ownership of the land and stormwater
management area to the City.
 
Citizen Participation
Any private or public property related access, right-of-way, and/or permitting will be coordinated
between the respective property owners, public agencies, City and WET. There are currently no
construction related activities within the scope of this Agreement.
 
Workload Impacts
WET has indicated they have the available resources to perform the engineering work scope and
complete the master plan by September 2018.
 
Purpose
Reasons to provide proper storm water management in the Watson Coulee drainage basin include:

1. the downstream area between 6th Street N.W. and Vaughn Road is drained by natural and manmade
channels which are relatively flat, narrow and slow draining. These channels have limited capacity
to handle increased peak flows;

2. between Vaughn Road and the Sun River, the drainage is routed into a large detention pond  and
then through twin box culverts to the river. These facilities were designed and constructed by     the
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers for flood control in West Great Falls. The design capacity did not
assume significant upstream urbanization.

3. The West Great Falls Flood Control & Drainage District  has expressed concern regarding storm
water runoff into the basin;  and

4. U.S. Clean Water Act regulations require stormwater runoff from urban areas to be treated before
discharging to water bodies such as the Sun and Missouri Rivers.  The City is permitted (MPDES
MS4) for these discharges.

 
Project Work Scope
Basic engineering services include topographic and utility surveys; wetland delineation; geotechnical
investigation; storm water hydrological and hydraulic modeling; design engineering for the stormwater
management area including ponds, wetlands, and conveyance facilities; design engineering for the trunk
storm drains and 43rd Avenue NE/NW; cost estimates and funding splits; and construction phasing and
scheduling.
 
Evaluation and Selection Process
WET has been selected on a rotational basis to provide the professional services in accordance with the
City’s Architect, Engineer and Surveyor Selection Policy and also based on their staff’s familiarity with
work scope and the ability to perform the engineering work scope in an acceptable time frame.
 
Conclusion
City staff recommends awarding the Professional Services contract to WET for the Vinyard Road Storm
Water Management Area Master Plan in the amount of $140,795.00. 

Fiscal Impact:
The scope of services includes cost estimates for the improvements along with developer and City cost
splits.  The Thaniel and West Ridge developments will be responsible for proportional shares of the

City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 26 of 54                                     



engineering costs herein associated with improvements serving each development master plan area.
 
City storm drainage and street funding is available to cover the Professional Services fees. The City
will be reimbursed by the West Ridge and Thaniel developers for their portion of the fees as identified
by the Master Plan.  
 

Alternatives:
The City Commission could vote to deny the approval of the Professional Services Agreement.

ATTACHMENTS:

1476.6 Professional Svcs Agreement

City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 27 of 54                                     



City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 28 of 54                                     Attachment # 1



City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 29 of 54                                     Attachment # 1



City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 30 of 54                                     Attachment # 1



City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 31 of 54                                     Attachment # 1



City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 32 of 54                                     Attachment # 1



City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 33 of 54                                     Attachment # 1



City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 34 of 54                                     Attachment # 1



City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 35 of 54                                     Attachment # 1



City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 36 of 54                                     Attachment # 1



reinforced concrete pipe design criteria and schematic I preliminary layout of connection 
to intercell piping in the detention I retention facility area. 

• Establish preliminary RCP pipeline, inlet and inlet piping technical specifications suitable 
to establish materials required by developers during future construction. 

• Prepare a preliminary cost estimate of the pipeline system. 

Storm Water Detention/Treatment Master Plan: Complete a conceptual Master Plan and storm 
water detention/treatment design according to the following details and assumptions: 

30% Design of the 43rd Ave Storm Pipe Detention Pond 
• Design detention/retention pond master plan layout for the pond structures as necessary 

to detain and treat the stormwater flow from the 43rd storm drain. Calculate surface area, 
volume, planning level preliminary elevations and rough earthwork estimates in 
conjunction with the overall treatment plan. 

• Determine a schematic intercell storm water piping system and preliminary strategy for 
water surface elevation controls as necessary for function of the storm water treatment 
unit, systems, wetlands and final discharge, bypass, and overflow systems. 

Preliminary Plan of the Entire Vinyard Storm Drain Pond Acreage 

• Prepare a preliminary footprint pond layout to be used in future plan preparation as each 
portion of the development area is completed by developers. The storm volumes from 
the Morrison-Maierle master plan and the Thaniel Master Plan will be used to prepare 
this conceptual level plan. 

• A planning level conceptual cost estimate including the areal footprint, pond depths, 
volume and earthwork of the pond system. 

Roadway Design- 43rd Ave NW/NE: Complete a design of 43rd Avenue NW/NE according to the 
following details and assumptions: 

• Prepare detailed horizontal alignment and vertical grade for the roadway including plan 
and profile sheets. Alignment selection will be coordinated with City Planning and 
Engineering staff. 

• Prepare a City standard roadway typical section including surfacing and backslope. 

• Prepare roadway cross-sections and establish and map construction limits. 

• Produce a grading plan and compute grading quantities and surfacing quantities. 

• Complete preliminary drainage inlet I culvert design adequate for cost estimating. 

5 
City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 37 of 54                                     Attachment # 1



City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 38 of 54                                     Attachment # 1



City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 39 of 54                                     Attachment # 1



City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 40 of 54                                     Attachment # 1



City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 41 of 54                                     Attachment # 1



City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 42 of 54                                     Attachment # 1



Agenda # 10.
Commission Meeting Date: April 3, 2018

City of Great Falls
Commission Agenda Report

Item: Construction Contract Bid Award: Police Department Water Main Replacement/Re-route, O. F.
1684

From: Engineering Division

Initiated By: Public Works Department

Presented By: Jim Rearden, Public Works Director

Action Requested: Consider Bids and Approve Contract for Office File 1684

Suggested Motion:
1.  Commissioner  moves:
 

"I move the City Commission (award /not award) a contract in the amount of $131,350.00 to
United Materials of Great Falls, Inc. for the Police Department Water Main Replacement/Re-
route and authorize the City Manager to execute the construction contract documents."

 
2.  Mayor requests a second to the motion, Commission discussion, public comment, and calls for the
vote.

Staff Recommendation:
Approve construction contract award. 

Summary:
Four bids were received and opened for this project on March 21, 2018.  The bids for this project
ranged from $131,350.00 to $158,741.00 with United Materials of Great Falls, Inc. submitting the low
bid.  

Background:
This project will replace/re-route the water main along the north side of the Police Department and east
side of Energy West and will also replace the Police Department’s water service.
 
This project is being completed in cooperation with the Montana Department of Environmental Quality
(DEQ).
 
City engineering staff, in conjunction with utility staff, designed the project and will perform construction
inspection and contract administration duties.          

City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 43 of 54                                     



 
This project will replace the water service to the Police Department which has been failing with
increasing frequency. It is currently tapped to the water main in Park Drive.  The breaks on this service
line are causing extensive damage to property and disrupting water service to the Police Department. 
The water service breaks are primarily due to corrosive soils, age and type of pipe material used. 
 
The new water service will be tapped off the new water main which will replace existing ductile iron
water main installed in 1983.  The new main will be installed in the roadway and moved out of Energy
West’s parking lot area.
 
This project will replace approximately 480 lineal feet of 8-inch ductile iron water main with 8-inch
PVC water main; replace 1 fire hydrant; 2 water service connections; 170 lineal feet of 2-inch copper;
500 square yards of gravel; and 450 square yards of asphalt pavement. 
 
City staff recommends awarding the contract to United Materials in the amount of $131,350.00.  United
Materials has executed all the necessary documents.  This project was originally bid on February 21,
2018.  Bids were rejected due to errors in the low bid.  The other bids exceeded our budget.

Fiscal Impact:
This project is being funded through the Police Department, Water Capital Improvement Fund, and
Street Department Maintenance Fund. 

Alternatives:
The City Commission could vote to award the construction contract to the second bidder, award to a
different bidder, or reject bids and not rebid the project, repairing breaks as they occur in the future.

Concurrences:
DEQ has reviewed and approved the plans and specifications for this project.

ATTACHMENTS:

Bid Tab for Police Department Water Main Replacement/Re-route, O. F. 1684

City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 44 of 54                                     



City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 45 of 54                                     Attachment # 1



Agenda # 11.
Commission Meeting Date: April 3, 2018

City of Great Falls
Commission Agenda Report

Item: CDBG Public Needs Hearing Date for 2018/2019 Annual Action Plan

From: Craig Raymond, Director, Planning and Community Development

Initiated By: Maria Porter, CDBG/HOME Administrator, Planning and Community Development

Presented By: Craig Raymond, Director, Planning and Community Development

Action Requested: Set Public Hearing for the 2018/2019 Annual Action Plan for April 17, 2018.        

Suggested Motion:
1.  Commissioner moves:
 

“I move that the City Commission (set/not set) a public hearing for April 17, 2018."
 
2.  Mayor requests a second to the motion, Commission discussion, public comment and the calls for the
vote.

Staff Recommendation:
Staff recommends that the City Commission set April 17, 2018, as the public hearing date for the
2018/2019 Annual Action Plan. 

Summary:
As part of the CDBG process, the City Commission is asked to set the Annual Action Plan Public
Hearing Date.

Background:
CDBG and HOME programs are federal programs administered by HUD to help fund local community
development programs including affordable housing, anti-poverty efforts, public service assistance, and
community infrastructure projects.  The primary goal of these programs is to assist low and moderate
income (LMI) persons improve their quality of life in their respective communities.  State and local
governments receive funding from HUD based on a formula derived from population statistics. 
 
The Annual Action Plan is developed each year by Planning and Community Development staff, based
on input from the community and City Commission, to implement the broader community goals outlined
in the Community's Consolidated Plan. Additionally, staff is recommending broad changes to the Citizen
Participation Plan and grant award procedures this year. As such, community input during the public
hearing will be important to gauge response to proposed amendments.  

City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 46 of 54                                     



 
Citizen Participation
The Proposed Annual Action Plan will be made available to the citizens of Great Falls for review and
comment for a 30-day period.  The public needs hearing on April 17, 2018, is a forum to allow the
citizens of Great Falls the opportunity to express their views on needs that should be addressed in the
upcoming Annual Action Plan.
 
Workload Impacts
In accordance with federal regulations, administrative responsibilities will result from the acceptance
and use of the CDBG and HOME funds.  The CDBG/HOME Administrator will be responsible for the
environmental reviews, contract development, project monitoring, invoice processing, federal reporting,
and other HUD requirements to implement the Plan.
 
Purpose
A public hearing will assist with community engagement in the Grant Process for the 2018/2019 Annual
Action Plan.
 
Conclusion
The public hearing provides the citizens of Great Falls an important opportunity to comment on
community needs.

Fiscal Impact:
The 2018/2019 Community Development Block Grant award is estimated, based on last year’s
allocation, to be $702,709. Home Investment Partnership funds awarded are estimated to be $191,100.
The Cities CDBG/HOME program is self-sustained by federal funds with no impact to City general or
other funds. 

Alternatives:
The hearing is required for the City to be awarded 2018/2019 CDBG and HOME funding.  The City
Commission may choose not to hold the public hearing and thereby not receive the funds.

ATTACHMENTS:

Grant Schedule

City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 47 of 54                                     



                                      City of Great Falls 

                                         CDBG/HOME Annual Action Plan Schedule 

Commission Work Session to discuss Grant funding Priorities & Policies  November 21, 2017  

Public Needs Assessment- Neighborhood Councils (1/31, 2/19, 2/22, 3/1), 

Community Survey, and Stakeholder Focus Group (3/5/18)  

January 26, 2018-  March 16,2018 

City Commission Work Session to review Community Data, City Commission 

Meeting to set date for Public Needs Hearing   

Tuesday April 3, 2018   

15 day comment period for proposed Citizen Participation Plan  March 30, 2018- April 16, 2018  

City Commission Meeting to vote on Grant Policies and Citizen Participation 

Plan, Public Needs Hearing   

Tuesday April 17, 2018   

City Commission Meeting to vote on Goals to be included in Annual Action Plan  Tuesday May 1, 2018 

Proposed 2018/2019 Annual Action Plan completed and available for review.  Tuesday May 8, 2018 

30 day comment period for proposed 2018/2019 Annual Action Plan  May 8, 2018 – June 8, 2018 

ConPlan/Annual Action Plan submitted to HUD    By June 30, 2018 

 

City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 48 of 54                                     Attachment # 1



Agenda # 12.
Commission Meeting Date: April 3, 2018

City of Great Falls
Commission Agenda Report

Item: 2017/2018 Annual Action Plan Amendment and CDBG Timeliness Projects

From: Planning and Community Development Department

Initiated By: Maria Porter, CDBG/HOME Administrator

Presented By: Craig Raymond, Director, Planning and Community Development

Action Requested: 
Adoption of the 2017/2018 Amended Annual Action Plan and a cceptance of the proposed use of CDBG
funds (Unallocated & Revolving Loan Funds).

Suggested Motion:
1.  Commissioner moves:
 

“I move that the City Commission (adopt/not adopt) the 2017/2018 Amended Annual Action
Plan; (authorize/not authorize) the submittal to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD); and (accept/deny) the proposed use of funds, due to Timeliness, for the
2017/2018 Community Development Block Grant Program (CDBG)."
 

2.  Mayor requests a second to the motion, Commission discussion, public comment, and calls for the
vote.

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning and Community Development staff recommends that the City Commission adopt the
proposed Amended Annual Action Plan, authorize submittal to the U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development (HUD), and accept the proposed use of CDBG funds.
 

Summary:
The amended 2017/2018 Amended Annual Action Plan includes the addition of new projects to address
a Timeliness Notification from HUD and removes six existing projects which must be eliminated due to
conflict of interest concerns raised by HUD. The Planning and Community Development Department
proposes the revised list of projects to expend funds by May 2, 2018 and ensure the Timeliness
Requirement is met.

Background:
The Annual Action Plan portion of the Consolidated Plan includes the proposed use of CDBG and

City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 49 of 54                                     



HOME funds for the 2017-2018 fiscal year.  The Consolidated Plan is a five year comprehensive
planning strategy required by HUD.   The 2017/2018 Annual Action Plan will be in its third year of
implementing this five year plan.
 
Significant Impacts
The City is at risk of becoming non-compliant with the regulatory timeliness requirements for its
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds. The expenditure of these funds by May 2,
2018, has a significant impact to the CDBG Program. First, it would keep the City in compliance which
protects future funding. Second, as HUD has requested, it will decrease the line of credit in the
Revolving Loan Fund and CDBG unallocated funds. Lastly, it will immediately provide funding
for more projects to benefit Low to Moderate Income Persons, increasing the CDBG impact in the
community.
 
Citizen Participation
A 30-day comment period beginning March 7, 2018, through April 6, 2018, was established to receive
citizen input on the proposed 2017/2018 Amended Annual Action Plan. Notice of the Annual Action
Plan Amendment was published in the Great Falls Tribune on March 16, 2018.  A copy of the proposed
Amended Annual Action Plan has been available for review in the City’s Planning and Community
Development Department Office, the Great Falls Public Library, and on the City of Great Falls web
page. Following the 30 day public comment period, the final Amended Annual Action Plan will be
submitted to HUD. The final Annual Action Plan will be on file in the City Clerk's office.
 
 Workload Impacts
In accordance with federal regulations, increased administrative responsibilities will result from the
additional Timeliness projects.  The CDBG/HOME Administrator will be responsible for the expedited
environmental reviews, contract development, project monitoring, invoice processing, federal reporting,
and other HUD requirements.
 
 Purpose
The purpose of the 2017/2018 Annual Action Plan Amendment and proposed Timeliness Projects is to
remain in compliance with federal regulations. The City's CDBG line-of-credit must not exceed 1.5
times its annual grant amount by May 2nd of each year. The fiscal regulation includes Program Income
and the Revolving Loan Fund in the line-of-credit calculation. The 2017/2018 program year was
delayed due to the time length of HUD approval. This resulted in less time to expend project funds. As
of  March 13, Great Falls is at 1.75 times annual grant amount. As a result, the City must expend
$172,208 by the May 2nd deadline. This amount will decrease naturally through CDBG activities but
not to the quantity that is needed to remain in compliance. As a result, new Timeliness Projects were
identified for the amended 2017/2018 Annual Action Plan. These projects supplement existing projects
and replace others that cannot be executed due to conflict of interest issues.
 
Project Work Scope
2017/2018 Annual Action Plan Amendment includes:
 
Removal of the following Annual Action Plan AP-35 Projects:

Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc- Affordable Housing Construction
Great Falls Development Authority- Job Creation
Habitat for Humanity Opportunities Inc. – Roof
Paris Gibson Square - ADA Bathroom
Rural Dynamics, Inc.- Rent Reporting

 

City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 50 of 54                                     



Addition of the following Projects (please see attached project list for more details):
Great Falls Housing Authority - boiler purchase; entry door system; and furnaces - $40,000
Great Falls Public Works - sidewalk and curb ramps - $27,495
Great Falls Park and Recreation - Kranz Park Play Structure - $45,000
Great Falls Park and Recreation - Kranz Park Pavillion and Amenities - $28,000

 
These projects plus administrative costs will allow the City to expend its required Timeliness funds by
the May 2, 2018, deadline.
 
Evaluation and Selection Process for New Projects
The CDBG Timeliness projects that were chosen by Planning and Community Development staff based
on the following criteria:

Consistency with the 2015-2019 Consolidated Plan
Plan identifies needs in Housing Assistance, Economic Development, and Public
Improvements;

Consistency with the Department's Community Needs Survey;
Ability to expend funds by May 2 deadline;   
Concurrence from HUD on project eligibility;

 

Fiscal Impact:
The Timeliness Projects and Amended Annual Action Plan will not influence the City Budget. The
funding that will be expended is CDBG reallocated funds from the removed projects and unallocated
funds in the Revolving Loan Fund. 

Alternatives:
The City Commission may choose to approve the 2017/2018 Amended Annual Action Plan and
proposed list of Timeliness Projects as presented, amend the proposal, or reject the amendment and/or
project list.  Delaying action on this the proposal would put the City at risk of not meeting the rapidly
approaching May 2nd deadline. Rejecting the proposal will result in the City becoming noncompliant
and failing to meet HUD's May 2nd Timeliness Test. This would lead to a warning from HUD and the
return of all excess funds to the federal government.

ATTACHMENTS:

FY17 Annual Action Plan Press Release & Amendment
Timeliness Project List

City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 51 of 54                                     



City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 52 of 54                                     Attachment # 1



City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 53 of 54                                     Attachment # 1



  March 16, 2018 

2017/2018 USE OF FEDERAL GRANT FUNDS 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 

Timeliness Projects 
 

Affordable Housing 
 

2940-71-742 
 

 Funding Project # Acct # 
 
 
Great Falls Housing Authority $40,000 CD721830 47330 
Affordable Housing Rental Rehab. - Purchase two new boilers for 
Austin Hall, new entry door system and purchase 40 furnaces for 
Parkdale Amp 1 and Amp 2. 
   
 

Public Facility Improvements 
2940-71-742 

 
 Funding Project # Acct # 
 
GREAT FALLS CITY PUBLIC WORKS – SIDEWALK AND 
RAMPS $27,495 CD721809 49310 
Grant program to provide assistance to low income homeowners 
to remove and replace hazardous sidewalks within the city limits 
and replacement of existing intersections with ADA accessible 
ramps 
 
 
GREAT FALLS CITY PARK & RECREATION – $45,000    CD721831 49310 
KRANZ PARK- PARK STRUCTURE  
Park and Recreation staff will remove the existing play structure 
and install a new ADA compliant structure to meet the needs of 
many children in the neighborhood. 
 
GREAT FALLS CITY PARK & RECREATION – $28,000 CD721832 49310 
KRANZ PARK- PAVILION AND AMENITIES  
Purchase 20'x24' open Pavilion, 4 ADA compliant picnic tables, 
and 2 concrete garbage receptacles.   
 

City Commission Meeting - April 3, 2018                                                                                                      Page 54 of 54                                     Attachment # 2


	Meeting Agenda
	Minutes, March 20, 2018
	Total Expenditures of $1,956,273 for the period of March 1, 2018 through March 21, 2018, to include claims over $5,000, in the amount of $1,704,280.
	Contracts List
	Cancellation of Outstanding and Unpaid Checks from Municipal Court over a year old.
	Professional Services Agreement: Vinyard Road Storm Water Management Area Master Plan – O.F. 1476.6
	Construction Contract Bid Award: Police Department Water Main Replacement/Re-route, O. F. 1684
	CDBG Public Needs Hearing Date for 2018/2019 Annual Action Plan
	2017/2018 Annual Action Plan Amendment and CDBG Timeliness Projects

